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The James County Courthouse is located in Ooltewah in the former court square. The

Colonial Revival building was designed by Chattanooga architect William Hatfield

Sears, and erected in 1913 by contractor M. K. Wilson, to replace the original 1870s

courthouse which had burned. It served as the seat of government until James County

./ was abolished by the legislature in 1919. Hamilton County used the building as a
school for many years, and it is presently leased to Ooltewah Lodge No. 741 of the
Free and Accepted Masons. The fraternity sealed a number of window openings, but the
building has remained largely unchanged.

The square, two-story, five-bay building is constructed of brick laid in the stretcher
bond pattern. Pilaster-like stacks of stretchers accentuate the vertical lines of the
doors and windows and emphasize the height and vertical lines of the building. A two-
story Greek Revival portico, graced with four nonfluted columns and two square pilasters
and an unadorned pediment, highlights the west elevation. Composition shingles sheath
the low hip roof which is surmounted with five, offset, brick chimney stacks. The
plain, wooden, boxed cornice continues the Neo-Classical motif around the building.

The water table, composed mainly of header courses rests on a concrete foundation.

Most of the window openings are rectangular and have vertical-joint brick heads only
on the first story and plain wooden sills all around; the vertical surrounds reach
from cornice to foundation. Those windows which were not bricked in contain various
light configurations, namely, 12 over 1, 12 over 4, and 12 over 6. Small rectangular
windows appear in a few of the original apertures. The main entrance is centered in
the west elevation, and its head and surrounds match the windows; it contains wide,
double-leaf doors and a blind,. rectangular transom. The north door has an eliptical
openlng with a brick keystone arch and surrounds and is topped with a blind fan
transom; above thls door on the second story is a single light, rectangular window
with brick surrounds. The south entrance, which originally probably resembled the
main entrance, has been drastically modified; it now contalns a small, plain, single-
leaf door and a tiny window. Only the fan transom remains of a large window which
was centered between the first and second stories; the opéning and surrounds are
similar to those on the north door, and the sill matches those found throughout

the building.

Although more than sixty years old, the James County Courthouse is in good repair.
The newly organized James County Historical Society has expressed its interest in the
continued preservation of the building.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Tennessee General Assembly organized James County from fractions of neighboring
Hamilton and Bradley counties on January 30, 1871. The new county was named in

honor of Rev. Jesse J. James, the father of Representative Elbert James who intro-
duced the act which created the county. A dispute quickly developed over the location
of the county seat; Ooltewah, a railroad town, was chosen on April 27, 1871 over
Harrison, a port on the Tennessee River.

In 1890, the general assembly attempted to abolish the county, but local officials
opposed the action and appealed to the state supreme court. The high court declared
the act unconstitutional. By 1919, because tax revenues were so low, the county had
become bankrupt. Schools, roads, and public services were inadequate. The state
legislature voted in April 1919 to abolish James County, and in a referendum held on
December 11, 1919, citizens of the county voted 941 to 79 for annexation to Hamilton

County.

James County has the distinction of being the orily Ténnessee county, which, after
being erected and organized in accordance with the requirements of the state con-
stitution, was abolisHed. Two other attempts by the gerieral assembly ‘to eliminate
other counties, namely Lewis and Putnam, were unsuccessful. The courthouse then is
the only building associated with the "lost county of James."
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